
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T

T

TOWN O

TOWN C

TUES

M

Vi

Co

Co

Co

 

OF LOXA

COUNCI

AG

SDAY, D

ayor Dav

ice-Mayor 

ouncilman 

ouncilman 

ouncilman 

AHATCH

IL SPECI

GENDA

Decembe

id Browni

r Ronald D

n Tom Goltz

n Ryan Lia

n Jim Rock

HEE GR

IAL ME

er 1, 20

ing (Seat 4

D. Jarriel (

zené (Seat

ang (Seat 3

kett (Seat 2

ROVES 

ETING  

015 

4) 

(Seat 1) 

t 5) 

3) 

2) 



 

T
(Times e

Mayor D
Vice May
Councilm
Councilm
Councilm
 

 
1. OPE
 

a. C
 
b. P
 
c. A

 
2. PUBL
 
3. CON

(Publ
 
a. Mi
 
b. Inv
 
c. Es
 d
 
 
 

Tuesday
established by

10

David Brown
yor Ronald D

man Tom Go
man Ryan Li
man Jim Roc

NING 

Call to Order 

ledge of All

Approval of A

LIC COMM

NSENT AGE
lic Commen

inutes: Nove

voice for Go

scrow Agree
ocuments 

 

Tow
T

y, Decem
y Resolution N
0:30 p.m., wh

Lo

ning (Seat 4) 
D. Jarriel (S
oltzené (Seat
iang (Seat 3)
ckett (Seat 2)

& Roll Call

legiance & In

Agenda 

MENTS 

ENDA 
t will be per

ember 3, 201

oren, Cherof,

ement with 

wn of Lox
Town Co
mber 1, 2

No. 2014-08…
hich can be e

Town Ha
oxahatchee G

           
eat 1)          
t 5) 
)  
) 

PUBLIC N

l 

nvocation –

rmitted on co

15 

, Doody & E

Palm Beach

 

xahatche
ouncil M
2015 - 7:
… commenci
extended by m

 
all, 155 “F” R
Groves, Flor

   
  Town Man
 Town Cler
  Town Plan
  Town Atto

NOTICE/AG

Mayor Brow

onsent agend

Ezrol, P.A. 

h County C

 

ee Grove
Meeting 

00 p.m. 
ing at 7:00 p
motion of the

Road 
rida 33470 

nager Willia
rk Virginia M
nning Consu
orney Micha

GENDA 

wning 

da items prio

Clerk of the 

es 

to 10:30
.m., and end

e Council.) 

am F. Underw
M. Walton 
ultant, Jim Fl
ael D. Cirullo

or to Counci

Courts for 

Page 

0 p.m. 
ding no later 

wood, II 

leishmann
o, Jr. 

l vote) 

recording T

1 of 4 

than 

         

Town 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 1 of 144



Page 2 of 4 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 
 
a. New Palm Beach State College 
 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

QUASI JUDICIAL 
 
6. RESOLUTIONS 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-36 (Drysdale Site Plan) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE DRYSDALE 
PROPERTY (VALENCIA VILLAGE) SITE PLAN, FOR LAND OWNED BY 
NANCY C. DRYSDALE, AS TRUSTEE, UNDER THE NANCY C. 
DRYSDALE REVOCABLE TRUST AGREEMENT DATED SEPTEMBER 19, 
2005  , CONSISTING OF 6.55 ACRES MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT  THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SOUTHERN BOULEVARD AND 
LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
LEGALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS RESOLUTION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

b. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-37 (Weber Variance No. 2015-01) 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN O LOXAHATCHEE 
 GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE WEBER VARIANCE, FOR LAND OWNED 
 BY CHRISTOPHER D. WEBER AND DARA M. WEBER AND RONALD A. 
 CRAVENS, SR. AND JEANNE O. CRAVENS, CONSISTING OF 2.0 ACRES ORE 
 OR LESS, LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF KERRY LAND AND 
 FARLEY ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY DESCRIBED 
 IN EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
c.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-38  Relating to Award of Gravel Road Grading RFP (support 

documents will be included under a separate cover as an Addendum to the Agenda on 
Monday, November 30, 2015) 

 
7. ORDINANCES 

 
a. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-08 (Second Reading – Extend Moratorium) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 2 of 144



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCES 2014-08 AND 2015-05, THROUGH 
WHICH THE TOWN COUNCIL IMPOSED A MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING 
AND REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS 
AND TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON 
PROPERTIES FRONTING ON OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2015, TO 
EXTEND THE MORATORIUM UNTIL JUNE 30, 2016 TO ENABLE THE ADOPTION 
OF APPROPRIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. Agenda Item Report – Updates on various activities and issues concerning the Town 
 
b. Palm Beach County Fire/Rescue Monthly Reports for October 2015 
 
c.  Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report for November 2015 
 

      d. Discussion Relative to Town Lane Miles – 140th Avenue N Sun Sport Cut-Through 
  
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Report on Addressing RV Uses 
 
b. Discussion on Substandard Housing 
 
c.  2016 Legislative Policy 
 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Approval of Proposal from Keshavarz Associates for Preparation of Maintenance 
 Maps/Specific Purpose Surveys for Acquisition of Road Right-of-Way for 41 roadways, 
 totaling 9.95 miles of Town Roadways, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, in the total amount 
 of $97,585.40. 
 
b. South Florida Fair – Palm Beach County Municipalities Free Display Space 
 

11. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
a. Councilman Tom Goltzené 
 
 1.  Discussion of LGWCD Billing for Trails 

2.  Discussion of request for resolution to claim all LGWCD roads and maintenance  
     easements within the Town boundaries. 
 
 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 3 of 144



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
      b.  Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel 
 

1. Discussion Relative site clearing (Clear Cut), and  residential structures on to       
agriculture classified properties 

2. Discussion Relative to site distance and drainage at intersection of E Road and 
Collecting Canal Road 

 
12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
  

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for January 5, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 4 of 144



 

  Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
   Regular Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, November 3, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 
   

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 

 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Mayor David Browning and 
Council Members Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang and Jim Rockett. Also present was Town Manager Bill 
Underwood, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. and Town Clerk Virginia Walton.  Vice Mayor 
Ronald Jarriel was absent. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation - Mayor Browning 

 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 Council Member Rockett wanted to add an item under Old Business to discuss some ideas for 
the RV and Animal Cruelty issues and possible hotlines discussion.  Council Member Goltzené was 
not in favor of discussion at this meeting.   
 
Motion:   A motion to approve the agenda as revised was made by Council Member Liang and 
seconded by Council Member Rockett.  Motion passed 3 – 1, with Council Member Goltzené 
dissenting.  
 
2.   PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 Bill Louda and Ken Johnson both spoke on concerns about banning 24/7 operations, defeating 
any RV park plans and the manure problems.  Mr. Louda stated the Property Appraiser’s Office 
speaker had good information on agriculture classifications.  Also suggested RV’s might be considered 
seasonal rentals and excess of 30+ would be considered commercial.  Mr. Johnson suggested the Lt. 
and a Task Force be started again to put a lid on the manure issue.  Also part of the run-off problem 
was being caused by people filling in ponds, which diverted the water to the roads or neighbor’s 
property. 
 
 Jo Siciliano stated B Road owners were not opposed to a beautiful, functional roadway, but 
each property’s impact would be different and wanted to suggest a meeting with the Engineer, the 
Council and the property owners. 
 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA 

(Public Comment will be permitted on consent agenda items prior to Council vote) 
 
a. Minutes:  October 6, 2015 
b. Minutes:  October 20, 2015 
c. Invoice for Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 5 of 144



Regular Town Council Meeting, November 3, 2015                                                                                                        Page 2 of 6 

 

d.   Agreement with TFI Office Automation for a four year lease of the Lanier 416518  
      Digital Multi-Function Color Copier System 
e.  Resolution No. 2015-36 Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
f. Local Government Mileage Report for FDOT (added to agenda in Addendum #1) 

 
 Council Member Rockett requested that item #d be pulled from the consent agenda for 
discussion.  Council Member Goltzené requested that the added item #f be pulled from the consent 
agenda for discussion.  Prior to voting on the revised consent agenda, Town Attorney Cirullo read 
Resolution No. 2015-36 by title. 
 
Motion:   A motion to approve the consent agenda as revised was made by Council Member Liang and 
seconded by Council Member Goltzené.  Motion passed 4 – 0.  
 
Discussion of pulled consent agenda items: 
 

 d.   Agreement with TFI Office Automation for a four year lease of the Lanier 416518  
       Digital Multi-Function Color Copier System 

  
 Council Member Rockett asked if this new copier was in addition to the existing copier or as a 
replacement.  Town Manager Underwood responded the lease on the current copier was ending and 
this would be a replacement.   There were no further council comments. 
 
Motion:  A motion to approve the lease agreement with TFI Office Automation was made by Council 
Member Liang and seconded by Council Member Rockett.  Motion passed 4 – 0.  
 

 f.   Local Government Mileage Report for FDOT (added to agenda in Addendum #1) 
 
 Council Member Goltzené stated this has been an ongoing issue for several years and the 
District needed to get out of the road business and the Town needed to get into the road business. The 
ownerships were in question and it seemed the amount paid to the District was not in proportion to the 
roads listed as theirs. Council was reminded that although $93,000 was budgeted for this, it had 
already been approved that this amount could be amended based on the adjusted road miles.  Mayor 
Browning responded that the Council has never taken a stand regarding taking all the roads, and the 
premise had been for the two to co-exist.  John Ryan stated the District never conveyed ownership of 
the roads to the Town, only easement interests.  Keith Harris and Ken Johnson agreed that it was time 
for the Town to take over the roads.   
 
 Council questioned why the 600 ft. cut-through was listed as private when it has used as public 
access for over 25 years.  Town Manager Underwood responded that Palm Beach County has never 
identified this as a public road.  The problem here was that public funds could not be used to maintain 
a private road.   Town Manager Underwood and Town Attorney Cirullo stated they would speak with 
Palm Beach County on this and then possibly see if the property owner would Deed the cut-through to 
the Town.  
 
 Council also questioned whether 10th Place North was private, since it was not colored as such 
on the map presented.  Town Manager Underwood stated it was private.  There were also questions 
raised about the road control for the roads at the Sun Sport property.  Town had traffic control but who 
owned the road.   

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 6 of 144



Regular Town Council Meeting, November 3, 2015                                                                                                        Page 3 of 6 

 

 
Motion:  A motion to approve the Mileage Report for FDOT was made by Council Member Liang and 
seconded by Council Member Rockett.  Motion passed 3 – 1, with Council Member Goltzené 
dissenting.   
 
4.    PRESENTATIONS – None Scheduled 
 
5.   COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. FAAC Financial Report 2015 
 
Motion:  A motion to approve the FAAC Financial Report was made by Council Member Goltzené 
and seconded by Council Member Liang.  Motion passed 4 – 0.  
 
6.   RESOLUTIONS – none scheduled 
  
7.  ORDINANCES   
 
 a. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-08 (First Reading – Extend Moratorium)\ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCES 2014-08 AND 2015-05, THROUGH 
WHICH THE TOWN COUNCIL MPOSED AMORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING AND 
REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS AND 
TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON PROPERTIES 
FRONTING ON OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2015, TO EXTEND THE 
MORATORIUM UNTIL JUNE 30, 2016 TO ENABLE THE ADOPTION OF APPROPRIATE 
AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 Town Attorney Cirullo advised the Council that Staff had been directed to bring this moratorium 
extension forward for council approval, since Council was not ready to adopt the amendment to the 
Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to commercial land uses along Okeechobee Boulevard.  Town 
Attorney Cirullo then read the ordinance by title.   

 
Motion:  A motion to approve Ordinance No. 2015-08 on first reading was made by Council Member 
Liang and seconded by Council Member Rockett.  Motion passed 4 – 0  
 
8.   MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

a. Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues concerning the Town. 
 

 Regarding Big Dog Ranch, Manager Underwood was awaiting response to contribution 
agreement and funding check.  Council noted that the entire property had been cleared out with no 
permits obtained.  There was smoke all over today as they were burning a lot of trees, again without 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 7 of 144



Regular Town Council Meeting, November 3, 2015                                                                                                        Page 4 of 6 

 

permits.  Palm Beach County appeared to be allowing this to happen, when a Stop and Desist Order 
should have been issued.  Code enforcement was crucial.  Regarding the bid opening for Public Works 
functions, it was disappointing that the Water District has not submitted a quote.   Regarding Folsom 
Road Traffic Calming, Staff was waiting for response of timeline from Commissions’ Staff.  
 

b.  Palm Beach County League of Cities 2016 Priorities List 
 

 Council reviewed the list of priorities, agreed with some and opposed to others.  After 
discussion, consensus was that each council member would mark up the League list with their opinions 
and use that as speaking points during the Legislative Conference meeting with legislators.  Council 
was also reminded that there was a small amount in the budget for a lobbyist. 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS – added to agenda by Council Member Rockett 

 
a. Discussion about Staff bringing back alternate plans or ordinances for addressing RV’s and 
Animal Slaughtering concerns.   
 

 Council Member Rockett stated that at the last meeting Staff had been directed to bring back 
alternate plans or ordinances for the RV issue, manure issue, substandard housing issue and animal 
slaughtering issue; and he had yet to see anything.  Possibly Council needed to give Staff more 
direction.  Council Member Rockett again brought up the idea of a local anonymous reporting hotline. 
 
 Mayor Browning responded that this item had been approved for addition to the agenda as a 
discussion item only.  Council should not give direction on something that was not officially put on the 
agenda.  Council Member Goltzené added that an anonymous hotline was not necessary.  There were 
already U.S. Agency hotlines in place for anonymous complaints, such as Crimestoppers for criminal 
activities, FWC for wildlife abuses and DCF for human abuses.   
 
 Town Attorney Cirullo stated that the resolution had been pulled from the previous meeting; 
however, discussion and public comment had taken place.  The Council had given direction to Staff to 
come back with alternate ordinances or plans.  They were still researching and working on these plans; 
however if Council would like to give Staff their thoughts, they could be incorporated into a report that 
could be presented at the December meeting. 
 
 After discussion, Council came up with the following ideas: 
 
 1. Code enforcement hearings took too long and a possible citation program taken to the 
County Court System should be considered. 
 2. Some program to education people what they can do to prevent a repeat of the animal 
abuse situation that recently occurred. 
 3. Need to get code enforcement people in place with some clout; then work on solving 
the problems.  The Town also should look at having its own building department. 
 4. Migrant sub-standard housing – ongoing problem that needs to be addressed separately. 
 5. RV’s.  The Council was not against the equestrian people, but they do bring in multiple 
RV’s and create part of the problem.    
 
 Keith Harris was not in favor of anonymous complaint.  John Ryan added that the Town has 
codes, the anonymous complaints would just start the process and the Town would actually be doing 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 8 of 144



Regular Town Council Meeting, November 3, 2015                                                                                                        Page 5 of 6 

 

the investigating and prosecution.  Tim Hart and Ken Johnson were in agreement with previous 
comments about “everyone knows but no one tells” and the need for code enforcement clout and 
ordinances to address the problems.  Possibly there could be something on the website for the residents 
to be the eyes and ears of the community.   
 
 Mayor Browning responded that it was easy to find the problems; but the hard part was finding 
the legal solutions that would stand up to scrutiny.  
 
 Town Attorney Cirullo and Town Manager Underwood both stated that they have noted the 
topics discussed tonight and would work on a written report on some preliminary findings for the next 
meeting. 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Okeechobee Corridor Master Plan – Work Authorization Okeechobee Boulevard  Planning &   
Zoning  

 
 Council Member Rockett stated he had a problem paying the Management Company extra for 
not doing what was already in the RFP.  Council Member Goltzené responded this was not in his 
contract.  Mayor Browning stated this needed to get finally resolved or the Town would start losing 
pending lawsuits.   
 
Motion: Council Member Rockett made a motion to only fund the portion of this work 
authorization dealing with outside vendors.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  
Motion was tied 2 – 2, and did not pass. 
 
Motion:  Council Member Goltzené made a motion to fund the work authorization fully.  Motion was 
seconded by Mayor Browning.  Motion was tied 2 – 2, and did not pass. 
 
 Town Attorney Cirullo reminded Council that the Workshop has already been set by motion 
adoption at the last meeting; and if they did not want to fund the work necessary for the workshop, 
then they would have to make a motion to cancel the workshop.  Council consensus was that the 
workshop stay on the schedule and this work authorization be brought back again at the next council 
meeting. 

 
b. B Road “OGEM” Improvements Change Order (added to agenda under Addendum #1) 

 
 Council Member Rockett asked if this change order was just for the design. Town Manager 

Underwood responded this was for the designs, research and letters to be sent out. 
 

Motion:  A motion to approve the change order was made by Council Member Rockett and seconded 
by Council Member Liang.  Motion passed 4 – 0.  
 
11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 

a. Mayor Browning 
  
 1.  Town of Palm Beach Letter regarding Legislative Proposal on Standardized Date for Local 
 Government Elections 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 9 of 144



Regular Town Council Meeting, November 3, 2015                                                                                                        Page 6 of 6 

 

 Town Attorney Cirullo explained that this proposal had not been brought forward as an actual 
Legislative Bill yet, but support or opposition from local municipalities was encouraged to let 
legislators know how they felt.  This proposal would require the Town to change its Charter, and also 
to change Council term to either 4 year terms or 2 year terms.  Council was in consensus that they 
strongly opposed this proposal. 
 
Motion: A motion to direct Staff and Legal to draft a memo for the Mayor’s signature opposing all the 
items covered in this proposal and sent to the State Legislators was made by Council Member Rockett 
and seconded by Council Member Liang.  Motion passed 4 – 0.  
 
12.  CLOSING COMMENTS 

a. Public   
 
A final comment card from Bill Johnson was read by the Mayor. 
  

b. Town Attorney 
 
1. Council Ethics Training 
 

 Town Attorney Cirullo advised the Council that the new State Law required each of them to 
fulfill 4 hours of training each calendar year, and starting with the 2015 Financial Statement Form 1, 
they would need to confirm in writing that they had in fact taken the training.   The Ethics training that 
Council had completed earlier in the year could count towards this requirement. There were some 
online options available through Florida Commission on Ethics website and also the Florida Institute 
of Government website, www.IOG.fsu.edu/events/online_training/index.html  
 

c. Town Council Members 
 
 Town Council Members each thanked everyone for coming tonight and wished everyone a 
Happy Thanksgiving.  Mayor Browning also announced that he had decided to run again for Council 
and had submitted his qualifying paperwork today.  
 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:43 p.m. 
 
 
 
              
Virginia M. Walton, Town Clerk    David Browning, Mayor 
 
 

 

 
 
These minutes were approved by the Town Council on Tuesday, _____________, 2015. 
 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 10 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 11 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 12 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 13 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 14 of 144



 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3c. 

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015 
      
PREPARED BY:  Virginia Walton, Town Clerk  
   

SUBJECT: Escrow Agreement with Palm Beach County Clerk of the Court  
 
1.BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: certain documents such as Special Magistrate Orders, code enforcement 
liens, some ordinances, planning & zoning department agreements, etc., need to be recorded 
with the Palm Beach County Clerk of the Courts.  

Problem Solution: The Palm Beach County Clerk of the Courts Recording Department has a 
program for establishing an escrow recording account with the Clerk of the Court, allowing all 
recordable documents to be mailed using a standard transmittal form.  Documents will be 
returned by mail to the Town, along with a monthly statement listing all documents recorded, 
the cost for recording each document and a balance in the escrow account.     

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  

Recording Town documents require personnel to travel downtown to the Clerk of the Court 
offices in West Palm Beach with a check and wait for the document to be recorded.  This is time 
consuming and inefficient use of personnel time. 

3.ATTACHMENTS  
   Escrow Agreement Form 
   Email from PBC Supervisor – Court Operations outlining escrow account benefits 
  
4.FINANCIAL IMPACT  

The monthly statement will give a concise list of all recorded documents and all costs involved, 
and only one check per month will be required for replenishing the escrow account, rather than 
multiple checks for each document.  Also, this will allow for more efficient use of personnel 
time.   

  
5.RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  
Motion to authorize the Mayor to execute the escrow agreement form with Palm Beach County 
Clerk of the Courts and establish the escrow account with five hundred ($500.00) funding level.

  

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 15 of 144



 
 

1 

LEGAL RECORDS

ESCROW AGREEMENT

A @

A @

=

=

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 16 of 144



 
 

2 

=

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 17 of 144



 
 

3 

=

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 18 of 144



 
 

4 

EXHIBIT “A” 

DESIGNATION OF PRINCIPAL
AND

ALTERNATE AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 19 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 20 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 21 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 22 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 23 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 24 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 25 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 26 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 27 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 28 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 29 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 30 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 31 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 32 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 33 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 34 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 35 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 36 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 37 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 38 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 39 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 40 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 41 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 42 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 43 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 44 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 45 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 46 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 47 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 48 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 49 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 50 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 51 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 52 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 53 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 54 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 55 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 56 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 57 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 58 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 59 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 60 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 61 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 62 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 63 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 64 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 65 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 66 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 67 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 68 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 69 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 70 of 144



 

 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCES 2014-
08 AND 2015-05, THROUGH WHICH THE TOWN COUNCIL IMPOSED A 
MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING AND REVIEW OF 
APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENTS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO 
COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON PROPERTIES FRONTING ON 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2015, TO EXTEND 
THE MORATORIUM UNTIL JUNE 30, 2016 TO ENABLE THE ADOPTION 
OF APPROPRIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 3, 2015, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2014-08, which 

imposed a moratorium until May 31, 2015, on the receipt and processing of applications for Land 

Use Applications and Text Amendments to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to commercial 

land uses on property fronting Okeechobee Boulevard to provide the Town with time to review the 

Comprehensive Plan; and,  

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of Ordinance 2014-08, Town Administration, the Town 

Planner, and the Town Planning and Zoning Board (Land Planning Agency (LPA)), have worked 

diligently on reviewing the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its May 19, 2015, meeting, the Town Council received proposed 

amendments to the Town Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee Boulevard, but required more 

time to evaluate amendment options and to complete the adoption process; and,  

 WHEREAS, on July 7, 2016, in order to provide more time for the Town’s Management 

and Planning Staff, as well as the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board and the community, more 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 71 of 144



Ordinance No. 2015-08 

Page 2 of 4 
 

time to review these issues which are so vital and critical to the future of the Town, the Town 

Council enacted Ordinance 2015-05 to amend Ordinance 2014-08 to extend the moratorium to 

December 31, 2015; and,  

 WHEREAS, since July 2015, there have been several meetings of the Town’s Planning and 

Zoning Board to review development issues along Okeechobee Boulevard, and Town Management 

and Planning Staff have continued to review these important issues; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its October 20, 2015 meeting, the Town Council received revised proposed 

amendments to the Town Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee Boulevard; however, the 

Town Council did not believe that such proposals warranted transmittal and adoption, and felt that 

additional direct input from the stakeholders in the process, including the property owners along 

Okeechobee Boulevard, was necessary in order to ensure a proper balance of permitted development 

along Okeechobee Boulevard with the vision of the Town to remain rural and avoid unnecessary 

expansion of Okeechobee Boulevard through the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, as a result, more time is needed to continue to evaluate amendment options, 

including to provide for additional direct input from property owners along Okeechobee Boulevard, 

and to complete the adoption process, and a community workshop is scheduled for December 5, 

2015; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that it is in the best interest of the Town, and its 

residents, to extend the moratorium to provide additional time to review the Town’s Comprehensive 

Plan and for the adoption of amendments to the Plan, in order to enhance the Plan’s consistency with 

the Town’s historical conditions and vision of remaining a rural area.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 72 of 144



Ordinance No. 2015-08 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses, as well as those in Ordinances 2014-08 

and 2015-05,  are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a 

specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2. Moratorium Extended.   Section 4 of Ordinance 2014-08 and Section 2 of 

Ordinance 2015-05, are amended to extend the moratorium until June 30, 2016, to read as follows:   

Period of Moratorium.   The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
herby declares that the moratorium shall be effective for the period through June 30, 
2016, unless otherwise modified by the Town Council by ordinance. 
 

 Section 3. Except as amended herein, the provisions of Ordinance 2014-08 remain in 

full force and affect. 

 Section 4. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. If any Section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 3rd  DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2015. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 73 of 144



Ordinance No. 2015-08 

Page 4 of 4 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
 FLORIDA 

    

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel    
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
 
 
        
 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 74 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015

November 25, 2015 Will be setting a teleconference the week of 11/30/2015

November 13, 2015 Emailed bullets and report to G. Webb

October 29, 2015 Provided J. Easton copy of bullet points and report

October 27, 2015 No activity on this item

October 13, 2015
Telephone call to Mr. George Webb, County engineer, and left a message for a 

return call.

October 8, 2015
Simmons & White submitted an analysis of the traffic light cost (attached) 

based on the Minto Proposal.

September 29, 2015
The town's traffic engineer should finish the costing during this week and can 

be available on the agenda of 10/20/2015.

September 1, 2015

Town traffic engineer determining cost for items not included in the Minto 

proposal.  This is needed in order to determine amount of Town funding 

needed.

August 25, 2015

Received email and will look to analyzing potential cost to implement light at D 

Road and Okeechobee.  Transmitted information to Town Engineer for very 

preliminary estimates of cost.

August 12, 2015 No activity on this item

July 15, 2015 No activity on this item

June 30, 2015 No activity on this item

May 11, 2015 No activity on this item

April 15, 2015

This office met with representatives from Minto.  Discussion points were 

covered regarding the proposed funding of the traffic control appurtenances 

for D Road and Okeechobee.  Staff will review the information and report 

progress at the June 16 Town Council meeting. 

April 1, 2015 No activity on this item

March 1, 2015
This office has received communication and we are trying to establish a date 

and time during the week of March 9th.  

February 10, 2015 No activity on this item

January 26, 2015 No activity on this item

January 14, 2015 No activity on this item

December 29, 2014

A discussion with Minto’s attorney indicated Palm Beach County would agree

for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement which may exclude

the County.

Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for the 

Pilot and Road Contribution:  Big Dog Rescue

Page: 1 of 6 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 75 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015

November 19, 2015
Emailed a reminder to Ms. Simmons regarding the agreement and $100,000 

funding for D Road contribution.

October 27, 2015 Emailed road contribution agreement and expect funding soon.

September 24, 2015
Teleconference with Town Attorney RE: agreements and some legal issues 

waiting to be reconciled.

September 23, 2015
Teleconference with Lauree Simmons regarding PILOT funding for $7,000 and 

road contribution for $100,000.

Page: 2 of 6 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 76 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015

October 12, 2015
Preparing scope of project to survey needed property for trails on 6th Court 

North

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

September 17, 2015

Met with owners, Denise & Marcel Bosse, of Red Clover Nursery to discuss 

potential of expanding the trail easement along the northern boundary of their 

property.  The owners were general receptive.  I advised the Town would 

prepare a survey after the Town receives the survey from the LGWCD.

November 24, 2015

Conference with representatives of Palm Beach State College and Vice Mayor 

Jarriel to clarify that trails will be open on the northern side of the college's 

property.

November 13, 2015 Authorized and remitted payment.

October 26, 2015

Received a response from Erdman Anthony indicating "...surveying projects are 

heavily weighted to the project initiation phases due to the preparation 

required to produce the final product.  The work required to produce the 

Maintenance Maps includes survey control research, extensive field survey, 

calculations, sheet set up and drafting standards management in addition to 

drafting the individual sheets. Therefore, significant effort is involved before 

the individual sheets are submitted for approval."

October 7, 2015

Received first request for reimbursement from LGWCD for $27,006.72.  

Requested clairification as to why the cost did not equate to about 7 miles of 

trails. 

November 25, 2015
Formulating policy for Council consideration delayed from 11/03/2015 

meeting.

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item.  Due to return to Council for further consideration.

Roads/Culvert Replacement:  Attended a meeting at West C Road and Timberlane to meet the District 

Administrator and Supervisor

Trails:  6th Court North, Red Clover Nursery

Trails:  6th Court North, Palm Beach State College & western property

Page: 3 of 6 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 77 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015

October 6, 2015
Town Council requested this item for the 10/20/15 agenda for culvert 

replacement policy postponed to 11/6/15

September 22, 2015

A culvert appears to be collapsed under the road leading into C canal.  Property 

Owners are looking for relief in fixing the culvert and road after the repair.  The 

Town collects gas tax for this road; however, the road is not the same as 

Compton, Marcella, and Bryan.

November 25, 2015 No response as of this date to request for meetintg.

November 13, 2015 Email to SFWMD staff to set a meeting.

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 14, 2015
Staff was unable to contact SFWMD to set a meeting to review letter to 

property owners on 43rd

September 30, 2015
No activity on this item.  Staff will reach out to the SFWMD during the week of 

October 5.

September 7, 2015 No activity on this item

August 12, 2015 No activity on this item

July 15, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of

the letter.

June 30, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of

the letter.

June 11, 2015 Staff received a proposed letter from SFWMD to the property owners on 43rd

May 27, 2015

Received a telephone call from Ken Mudd regarding a draft letter that will be 

sent and establishing a meeting date.  It is believed the draft letter will be 

forthcoming in the next week or two.

May 11, 2015 No activity.

April 14, 2015 No activity on this item.

April 1, 2015 No activity.

February 23, 2015
Ms. Hendrichsen Sandoval stated that this office will be notified in advance of a

letter will be drafted informing residents of a meeting to discuss the matter.

February 11, 2015 No activity.

January 15, 2015

This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work 

to plan their path forward.  Upon completing their planning effort, they will be 

in touch with staff.

January 14, 2015 No activity from SFWMD representative

Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and Ken Mudd, 

Page: 4 of 6 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 78 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015

December 16, 2015 No activity

December 1, 2015  Recommend action to the TC 

October 29, 2015   Bid opening date 11/2/2015 at 2pm

October 9, 2015
Advertisement published in PB Post and posted on the Town's web site.  Bid 

opening date 11/2/2015 at 2pm

September 26, 2015

An RFP for services ranging from road grading, tree trimming, mowing, street 

sign installation, road watering, OGEM repairs, and similar services has been 

prepared and is currently being reviewed by legal, engineering and the OIG.  

Once completed, the Town will place the advertisement in local newspapers 

and the Town's web site at a minimum.  The goal is to have this published by 

October 6th.

November 20, 2015
Prepared RFP for code enforcement services.  Responses are due December 21, 

2015 no later than 2pm.

November 25, 2015 No activity on this item

November 13, 2015
Teleconference with Ed Lowrey; teleconference with Shannon LaRoque RE: 

funding and large user agreement.

October 29, 2015 Met with Jim Stiles, PBC Utility Director for preliminary discussions.

October 14, 2015
No activity as of this date.  Will work to contact PBC utility before the 10/20/15 

Town Council meeting.

November 25, 2015 No activity on this item

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 14, 2015 No activity

July 29, 2015
His legal counsel has been advised that documents he requested copies of are 

available.  We have had no response.

July 15, 2015 A lien has been filed on this property.  

June 30, 2015
Attorney for Mr. Cherney reviewed documents; however, he continues to request 

additional time  and information

Water Utility:  Work to avoid Town residents from paying an extra 10% for potable water service to 

Royal Palm Beach Request for Proposals for Public Works related functions.

Purchasing:  Request for Proposals for Public Works related functions.

Unauthorized living structures:  Pursuant to Town Council instruction, staff initiated action against 

Purchasing:  Request for Proposals for Code Enforcement Services.

Page: 5 of 6 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 79 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015

May 29, 2015
Attorney for Mr. Cherney reviewed documents; however, he was unable to finish his 

review

May 11, 2015
Staff is working to complete a public records request relative to this case as of 

May 11, 2015.

May 5, 2015
Staff began the survey and will finish and work to prepare a report for either 

the April 21, or May 5, 2015, agenda.

Additionally, staff has proceeded with various actions on other properties 

initiated by individuals.

November 25, 2015 No activity on this item

October 29, 2015 No activity on this item

October 14, 2015 Waiting for response of timeline.

June 8, 2015 No activity to report

June 3, 2015 Provided information to the Town planner for thoughts and comments.

3. ATTACHMENTS

PBC Fire/Rescue Monthly Report ‐ October 2015

PBSO Monthly Report ‐ October 2015

4. FINANCIAL IMPACT

Not applicable.

5. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion to receive and file report.

Roads:   Folsom Road Traffic Calming

Page: 6 of 6 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 80 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 81 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 82 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 83 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 84 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 85 of 144



District 15 Loxahatchee Groves 

Monthly Report:  October 2015 

           

   
Calls for Service  
(self-generated) 

Monthly 

Business/Residence Checks 101 
Traffic Stops 9 
Dispatched calls 184 
Total 294 

Traffic Monthly 
Warnings 3 

Citations 6 

Totals 9 

Summary: During the month, D15 deputies handled (294) calls for service.  38% of calls for service 
were self-generated.  
 
Part I Crimes Case #’s  Monthly 
Murder  0 
Sexual Assault  0 
Robbery        0 
Aggravated Assault   1 
Burglary 4 
Theft                 0 
Motor Vehicle Theft   0 
Arson   0 
Total 5 
 

Summary:  

● 15-129501- On 10-5-15 a burglary to a business was reported a Gas pump was taken. It was 
discovered the pump was found and placed into evidence.  Information was given to the victim, 
case cleared.  

● 15-133170- On 10-16-15 a burglary to a business was reported, a shed was broken into a golf 
cart charger and other hand tools were reported missing, an attempt of theft of farm equipment 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 86 of 144



was unsuccessful.  An attempt of fingerprints was taken. The case is inactive pending further 
leads.  

● 15-133663- On 10-17-15 a burglary was reported to a residence, a pressure washer, weed 
trimmer, blower, wheel barrel, and cordless drill were missing.  The items were taken from a 
tented portable shelter which is only secured with a zipper. This case is inactive pending further 
information.  

● 15-136884- On 10-24-15 a delayed burglary to a business was reported, an Orange Kubota 
RTV was taken from a shed. No prints or DNA was available to recover. This case is inactive 
pending further information.  

 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 87 of 144



 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.d.  

MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015 

PREPARED BY:   Perla D. Underwood 
  

SUBJECT:  140th Avenue N/Sun Sport Cut-through Removal from Gas Tax Reporting  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  Town Council requested staff review the exclusion of 140th Avenue N 
Sun Sport Cut-through from the Gas Tax Report as part of the Town Roads.  

Problem Solution:   Report Staff review. 

140th Avenue N, Sun Sport Cut-Through (.010 miles) was not identified as a public Town Road 
by the County.  That portion of the Sun Sport Cut-through representing (.010 miles representing 
52.8 feet)  identified by PBC is correct as that 52.8 feet is outside the corporate limits of the 
Town and is a part of the greater unincorporated area of Palm Beach County.  

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  

  
40th Street North representing 1.462 miles is part of the Town Road Mileage list and a portion of 
this road segment includes that area starting at the entrance of Sun Sport Garden and runs east 
to the County line (west side of 140th Avenue North. 

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  

 Aerial Map of the identified segment removed. 
 PBC Property Appraiser Map identifying the unincorporated segment of 40th Street N 

(Cut-through) 
 LGWCD Town Road Maintenance Log identifying mileage for 140th Street N as the Cut-

through/Sun Sport, and 40th Street N. 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  
The removal of 140th Avenue N/Sun Sport Cut-through represents a reduction of 52.8 feet from 
the Local Mileage Report. 

  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  

Approve the data as originally recommended as provided by PBC OIG and Engineering 
Department, and authorize the Town Manager to submit the Report was required to the Florida 
Department of Transportation that include the identified roads, and mileage totals of 56.637 
road miles (113.27 lane miles). 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 88 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 89 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 90 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 91 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 92 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 79.a.  

MEETING DATE: 10/20/2015 12//1/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Resolution Approving a Zoning in Progress for RV Trailers in Residential 
Zone. 
  
1.BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  
 
 

  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: Item removed from the 10/20/2015 agenda with no action.  
Staff to return with additional information attached hereto for the 12/1/2015 Agenda.  
Discussion of potential actions to be taken regarding RV’s in the AR district. 
 
Problem Statement: The Town Council had significant problems with RV trailers squatting on 
residentially zoned property during the winter season that are unauthorized and negatively 
impact the resources of the Town, and Council needs a mechanism to manage the problem 
during the next 6 to 7 months.  
  
 

Problem Solution:  Adopt legislation that provides for a zoning in progress and authorizes the 
Town Manager to implement a temporary pilot program not exceeding 179 days and ending no 
later than May 1, 2016, that provides criteria within which some properties are authorized to 
host up to four (4) RV’s.  
 

 

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

 
Would like to thank the following Loxahatchee Groves residents that helped staff develop this 
proposed Resolution for Town Council consideration: 
Betty Case, Katie Davis, Keith Harris, Dennis Lipp, Bill Louda, Phyllis Maniglia, Shannon 
Perez 
 

 

3.ATTACHMENTS  
 

 
Update:  Notes - RV Regulations 
Resolution No. 2015-35 

 

4.FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 Unknown amount of revenue and expenditures will be generated. 
  
5.RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
 A motion to approve Resolution 2015-35.  

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 93 of 144



 

{00103339.1 1574-0702400 }  

RV Regulations 
 

1. 5+ RVs = RV Park 
a. Not permitted use in AR zoning 
b. Regulated by state law and rules; requires permit:  Chapter 513, F.S. 
c. State laws and rules refer health matters to local health department 
d. If discover, then: 

i. Code Case for unpermitted use 
ii. Refer to State of Florida 

 
2. ˂ 5 RVs 

a. Not an RV Park under Florida Statutes 
b. Not an “Accessory Dwelling Unit” as defined “Accessory dwelling unit” as 

defined in 20-010(A) [see (A)(5)] 
c. 20-010(G)(e), ULDC  Two can be stored without screening “provided that the 

vehicles are routinely operated/maintained by a permanent, full-time resident of 
the property.” 

d. Per PBC Health Department, “Limited Use Public Drinking Water Systems” may 
be required, as well as evaluation and approval of onsite sewage systems 

e. If discover: 
i. Code Case for unpermitted use (not accessory structure, not merely stored) 

ii. Report to County Health Department 
 

3. Enforcement 
a. Currently no proactive code, so requires written complaint to Town in order to 

investigate 
b. Traditional Code Enforcement – currently used by Town 

i. Courtesy Notice 
ii. Notice of Violation/Hearing 

iii. Hearing, with order to comply, more time and proposed fine (up to $250 
per day for an initial violation) 

iv. Certification Hearing 
v. If happens again, it’s a repeat subject to fines commencing the date the 

violation is observed up to $500 per day. 
c.  Town could use Alternate Code Enforcement 

i. Requires Ordinance to provide for specifics, including which violations 
can be addressed using this process, and the set fine amounts. 

1. Need to specify the violations subject to the process in a table, with 
corresponding fines 

2. Fines must be in a specific amount, and can be escalating 
ii. Requires use of specific forms, with statutorily required information 

iii. The process is: 
1. Notice and opportunity to correct with time no greater than 30 days 

(no time to cure if a repeat violation, a “serious threat to the public 
health, safety, or welfare’ or if violation irreparable or 
irreversible). 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 94 of 144



 

{00103339.1 1574-0702400 }  

2. If not corrected in the time provided, issue a citation. 
3. Original and one copy of the citation deposited in County Court. 
4. Upon receipt, respondent can pay the fine or request a hearing. 
5. If a hearing is requested: 

a. Hearing in county court 
b. Recommend attorney presence 

d. Notice to Appear 
i. Notice and opportunity to correct with time no greater than 30 days (no 

time to cure if a repeat violation, a “serious threat to the public health, 
safety, or welfare”, an itinerant or transient as defined by the code,  or if 
violation irreparable or irreversible). 

ii. Direct court hearing on the violation 
iii. Would require ordinance and development of forms 

e. Pressure State and County agencies to enforce their regulations 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 95 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 96 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 97 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 98 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 99 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 100 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 101 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 102 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 103 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 104 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 105 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 106 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 107 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 108 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 109 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 110 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 111 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 112 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 113 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 114 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 115 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 116 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 117 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 118 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 119 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 120 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 121 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 122 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 123 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 124 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 125 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 126 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 127 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 128 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 129 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 130 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.c.  
MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  2016 Revised Legislative Agenda 
  
1.BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  Preparation of the Legislative agenda to focus on key topics to be discussed with local, state 
and federal legislative bodies and agencies.  
 
Problem Solution: Adopt revised 2016 Legislative Agenda. 
 
At the November 3, 2015 meeting the Council reviewed the 2016 Legislative Agenda prepared by the Palm Beach 
County Municipal League's 2016 Legislative Agenda.  This is included as an attachment.  
 

 

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

In addition, staff was asked to compile a series of legislative actions from which the Council can select items to
support as the 2016 Florida legislature begins to meet and discuss proposed legislation for adoption during their 60
day session that begins January 12, 2016 and ends March 11, 2016.   
We recommend revising the 2016 Legislative Agenda to include support for legislative issues that: 

1. Support the Palm Beach County League of Cities legislative agenda with a minor exception of septic tanks
replacement; 

2. Supports legislation that appropriates fund to Palm Beach State College; 
3. Supports legislation that appropriates grant funds for Town Trail base improvements; 
4. Supports legislation that appropriates grant funds for Town Trail fencing; 
5. Supports legislation that appropriates grant funds for Land Acquisition to develop a downtown; 
6. Supports legislation that appropriates grant funds for Horse Arena Funding on a portion of the Palm Beach

County Loxahatchee Groves Park; 
7. Supports legislation that appropriates grant funds for Infrastructure improvements for main trunk water

lines; 
8. Supports legislation that appropriates grant funds for drainage Infrastructure Improvements on Town 

Roads; 
9. Supports legislation that provides for the licensing and control of sober homes; 
10. Supports legislation that does not impact properties with working septic tanks; 
11. Supports legislation that appropriates funds for infrastructure of drainage on D Road canal 

 

3.ATTACHMENTS  
 

 November 3, 2015 Agenda Item 8.b. 
 

4.FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 The Town Council has budget about $7,000 for lobbying services.

  
5.RECOMMENDED ACTION  
 Motion to adopt the revised 2016 Legislative Agenda. 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 131 of 144



 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 

Town Council Agenda Item Report 
 

Agenda Item No. 8.b. 
 

Meeting Date:  11/3/2015 
 

SUBJECT: Development of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 2016 Legislative Agenda  
 

l. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 

Issue:   Each year the Palm Beach County League of Cities prepares a legislative agenda to focus on 
key topics to be discussed with local, state and federal legislative bodies and agencies. 

 
Recommended Action:  Town Council to provide input regarding items to be included in the 
development of the Town’s FY2016 Legislative agenda. 

 
Town Council should prepare a legislative agenda packet listing the policies, projects, and special 
interests of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves which can be presented to local, state and federal 
legislative bodies and agencies to further our goals and objectives. 

 

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

 

The Palm Beach County League of Cities FY2016 Legislative p r io r i t ie s  
included the following issues: 

 
• Supports public records reform; 
• Supports legislation that repeals the state preemption of the regulation of vacation rental 

properties; 
• Opposes legislation that mandates local governments and their taxpayers bear the cost of  
• relocating utility equipment; 
• Supports legislation advancing new economic incentives for distressed areas; 
• Supports legislation that affirms the home rule powers of municipalities to establish and fund 

municipal employee benefit levels; 
• Recommends moratorium on mandates of any kind during the 2016 legislative 

session; 
• Monitor the effects of growth management legislation; 
• Supports focus on state resources for local workforce and career training at all education 

levels;  
• Support increased state funding for building and maintenance of educational facilities; 
• Supports using resources from Amendment 1 for enhancement of water quality; 
• Supports legislation appropriating $30 million annual doc stamp tax revenue to the 

Ecosystem Management and Restoration Trust Fund; 
• Supports financial and regulatory initiatives that prioritize and encourage properties with 

septic tanks to connect to sewer systems; 
• Supports legislation that simplifies Florida’s Sales and Use Tax System; 
• Supports legislation that preserves local control of transportation planning; 
• Supports legislation that protects the general revenues collected from the Community 

Services Tax; 
• Supports legislation that creates a level playing field in relationship to pari-mutuel 

facilities; 
 
 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 132 of 144



 

• Supports legislation maintaining dedicated funding categories for house rehabilitation, 
economic development and neighborhood and commercial revitalization. 
 

• Supports federal legislation that defined and establishes minimum regulatory standards for 
sober home facilities. 

 
Attached is the Palm Beach County League of Cities Legislative Priorities and Issues for 2016.  
Because these positions are more general in nature, some issues may not apply to the Town or may 
conflict with our position.  
 
Some Town Council members will be attending the Florida League of Cities Legislative Conference 
in mid-November where the city, town, and village local governments will be setting a state-wide 
legislative agenda. 
 
The Town Council should consider identifying and adopting our legislative agenda at the December 
1st meeting after considering both the Palm Beach County Municipal League and Florida League of 
City legislative policy statements.   
 
Upon adopting of the Town’s legislative objectives, the Council should consider attending and using 
the Palm Beach County Day in Tallahassee to advocate for the Town’s policies and objectives to the 
legislators during the legislative session.  

 
The Legislative Agenda adopted by the Palm Beach County League of Cities is attached as reference.   
  

 
Key Legislative Dates are listed below: 

 
 December 1 – Town Council Meeting to Adopt the Town’s Legislative Policies 
 January 12    –  Opening Day of the 2016 Regular Legislative Session 
 January 12-13 – Palm Beach County Day – Tallahassee 
 March 11       -   Last Day – 2016 Legislative Session 

 
If the Town adopts it’s FY2016 Legislative Agenda, the Town Council (individually and/or 
collectively) and staff will be authorized to advocate on behalf of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves in 
person or in writing in an effort to move forward the Town’s objectives. With direction from Town 
Council, staff will prepare a strategy to pursue local, state, and federal funding through the 2016 
Legislative Agenda. 

 
We request Town Council   identify any   issues for inclusion in the Town’s FY2016 Legislative 
agenda.  This will allow staff, Councilmembers and/or paid lobbyist to advocate these positions on 
the City’s behalf. 

 

  3. ATTACHMENTS 
 

Palm Beach County League of Cities - 2016 L e gislative Agenda 
Guide:  How to Effectively Communicate with Your Legislators 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 

 Limited funding has been provided in the FY2016 adopted budget for lobbyist services.   
 

 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 

 

It is recommended that the Town Council provide input as to the content of the Town’s FY2016 
Legislative Agenda and then adopt it.  

 
2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 133 of 144



Mailing Address:
Palm Beach County League of Cities, Inc.

P.O. Box 1989, Governmental Center
West Palm Beach, FL 33402

Office Address:
Governmental Center, 10th Fl, Suite 1002.17

301 North Olive Avenue
West Palm Beach, FL 33401

Tel. (561) 355-4484 · (Fax) 355-6545

League Staff:
Richard Radcliffe, Executive Director

rradcliffe@pbcgov.org
Je’Riise Hansen, Office Manager

jhansen@pbcgov.org
Trela White, Esquire, League Attorney

(561) 586-7116 · (Fax) 586-9611
trela@cwda-legal.com

Executive Committee:
Hon. Dawn Pardo, President

dpardo@rivierabch.com
Hon. Robert Shalhoub, 1st Vice President

rshalhoub@lakeclarke.org
Hon. Keith James, 2nd Vice President

kjames@wpb.org
Mo Thornton, Secretary-Treasurer

mthornton@atlantisfl.gov
Hon. Steve B. Wilson

Immediate Past President
dbuff@bellglade-fl.com

Welcome
The purpose of the Palm Beach County League
of Cities’ Legislative Agenda is to articulate,
advocate, promote and advance issues that may
significantly impact municipalities within Palm
Beach County. The League of Cities exists to
promote and advance best practices and
collective interests of the municipalities in Palm
Beach County; to study municipal problems and
seek solutions to them through cooperative
efforts; and to encourage and work for the
welfare of our citizens in Palm Beach County,
providing the best quality of life possible
countywide. The League was chartered in 1969
as a nonpartisan, nonprofit corporation by and
for municipalities. We are a recognized IRS-
501(c)(4).

38 Municipal Members by Area
District 1:

Juno Beach, Jupiter, Jupiter Inlet Colony,
Lake Park, Mangonia Park, North Palm
Beach, Palm Beach, Palm Beach Gardens,
Palm Beach Shores, Riviera Beach & Tequesta

District 2:
Cloud Lake, Glen Ridge, Haverhill, Lake
Clarke Shores, Loxahatchee Groves, Palm
Springs, Royal Palm Beach, West Palm Beach
& Wellington

District 3:
Atlantis, Boynton Beach, Greenacres,
Hypoluxo, Lake Worth, Lantana, Manalapan,
South Palm Beach & Village of Golf

District 4:
Boca Raton, Briny Breezes, Delray Beach,
Gulf Stream, Highland Beach & Ocean Ridge

District 5:
Belle Glade, Pahokee & South Bay

Links to individual municipal websites
and to get more information visit:

www.leagueofcities.org

2016 Key Dates:
January

12 Opening Day of the 2016
Regular Legislative Session

12-13 Palm Beach County Day -
Tallahassee

February
2-3 Florida League of Cities

Legislative Action Days -
Tallahassee

March
11 Last Day-

2016 Legislative Session
5-9 National League of Cities

Congressional City Conference,
Washington, D.C.

August
18-20 Florida League of Cities Annual

Conference – Diplomat Resort,
Hollywood

November
16-19 National League of Cities

Annual Congress of Cities and
Exposition - Pittsburgh, PA

The League Board of Directors
and General Membership meetings
are usually held on 4th Wednesdays

of each month at various host city
and Associate locations around

Palm Beach County.

For more information visit:
www.leagueofcities.org

Palm Beach
County

League of
Cities

Legislative
Priorities
& Issues
2016

The League represents the thirty-eight
municipalities of Palm Beach County,

plus over eighty associate,
government, non-profits & business

organizations.

“Shared visions & best practices
make for better communities.”

Visit us at...
www.leagueofcities.org

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 134 of 144



The League of Cities
2016 Legislative Priorities

The League of Cities supports legislation that
strengthens municipal self-governing powers.
“Home Rule,” or government closest to the
citizens, is key to a successful democracy.

Public Records
The League of Cities supports public records
reform to discourage or eliminate schemes
designed to generate violations of public records
laws, as well as limit harassing or unreasonable
public records requests.

Vacation Rentals
The League of Cities supports legislation that
repeals the state preemption of the regulation
of vacation rental properties in order to allow
local governments to regulate such properties
to protect the health and welfare of residents,
visitors and businesses.

Relocation of Utilities
The League of Cities opposes legislation that
mandates local governments and their taxpayers
bear the cost of relocating utility equipment
when the equipment is located within a public
utility easement or right-of-way and needs to
be relocated for public purposes.

Economic Development
The League of Cities supports legislation
advancing new economic incentives for
distressed areas and providing increased
flexibility for municipalities to enter into
public-privatepartnership agreements.

Pension  Plans & Benefits
The League of Cities supports legislation that
affirms the home rule powers of municipalities
to establish and fund municipal employee
benefit levels, and specifically provides
comprehensive pension reform, disability
presumption reform, and a mechanism for
municipalities to revoke their election to
participate in the Florida Retirement System.

Mandates
The League of Cities recommends a
moratorium on mandates of any kind during the
2016  legislative session. Local governments
are working to maintain current service levels
within the confines of an economic downturn.
We request that the state legislature allow time
for municipalities to focus on current
requirements without added regulations.

Effective Growth Management
The League of Cities will continue to monitor
the effects of growth management legislation
and oppose efforts that would undermine a local
government’s planning and zoning authority.

Workforce Training
The League of Cities supports the focus on state
resources for local workforce and career
training at all education levels and subsequent
job placement, with particular interest to our
inland port cities in Western Palm Beach
County.

State Funding for Educational
Facilities

The League of Cities supports increased state
funding for building and maintenance of
educational facilities for local universities and
Palm Beach County schools.

Amendment 1 Distribution
The League of Cities supports using resources
from Amendment 1 for enhancement of water
quality and beach management.

Beach Management
The League of Cities supports legislation
appropriating the $30 million annual doc stamp
tax revenue to the Ecosystem Management and
Restoration Trust Fund for beach preservation
and repair. The League supports the elimination
of redundancy in state and federal permitting,
while encouraging the streamline of permit
application review, which would reduce project
cost, accelerate the permitting process and
eliminate agency conflicts.

Water Quality & Supply
The League of Cities supports legislation
addressing water quality and quantity issues that
affect local communities’ aquifers, surface
waters and estuaries. Specifically, the League
supports efforts to maintain, revitalize and
protect Palm Beach County’s water quality in
the Glades, flooding and water retention, and
the restoration of the Loxahatchee River and
Lake Worth Lagoon.

Septic Tanks
The League of Cities supports financial and
regulatory initiatives that prioritize and
encourage properties with septic tanks to
connect to centralized sewer systems, especially
in areas that impact rivers, estuaries, first
magnitude springs and impaired water bodies.

Internet Sales and Use Tax
The League of Cities supports legislation that
simplifies Florida’s Sales and Use Tax System
and qualifies the state for participation in the
Streamlined Sales and Use Tax Agreement,
thereby making it easier for out-of-state
businesses to collect and remit taxes to Florida.

Palm Beach County LEAGUE OF CITIES, Inc. www.leagueofcities.org www.leagueofcities.com 2016 Legislative Agenda

Transportation
The League of Cities supports legislation that
preserves local control of transportation
planning and provides opportunities for
additional revenue options to fund municipal
transportation infrastructure projects including
roads and rails.

Communication Service &
Local Business Tax

The League of Cities supports legislation that
protects the general revenues collected from the
Communications Services Tax and the local
business tax which are used to provide services
that our citizens want and need, including public
infrastructure, public safely services and public
transportation infrastructure. Municipalities
have absorbed significant increases in
operational cost while receiving less tax
revenues.

Gaming / Gambling
The League of Cities supports legislation that
creates a level playing field in relationship to
pari-mutuel facilities in South Florida.

Housing & Small City CDBG
Policy

The League of Cities supports legislation
maintaining dedicated funding categories for
housing rehabilitation, economic development,
and neighborhood and commercial
revitalization, with adequate verification
safeguards that ensure grants will primarily
benefit low and moderate-income families.

Federal Legislation
Residential Sober Houses

The League of Cities supports legislation that
defines and establishes minimum regulatory
standards for sober home facilities and allows
for more stringent local regulations of these
facilities.

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 135 of 144



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.a.  
MEETING DATE: 12/01/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Prepare Specific Purpose Surveys for Acquisition of Road Right-of-Way 
  
1.BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: Town Council needs to begin the process of acquiring road right-of-way 
.  

Problem Solution:  Authorize staff to execute agreement with Town’s consulting engineer to 
prepare specific purpose surveys for the acquisition of road right-of-way for 41 roadways 
totaling 9.95 Miles. 
 
The Town Council budgeted $100,000 in the Capital Improvement Fund to survey Town Road
for filing pursuant to SS 95.361 (2)(b).  Upon completion of the survey and legal description,
the Town can file with the Clerk of the Court those roads under the Town’s maintenance (see
below).  
 
95.361 Roads presumed to be dedicated.— 
(1) When a road, constructed by a county, a municipality, or the Department of 
Transportation, has been maintained or repaired continuously and uninterruptedly for 4 years by 
the county, municipality, or the Department of Transportation, jointly or severally, the road 
shall be deemed to be dedicated to the public to the extent in width that has been actually 
maintained for the prescribed period, whether or not the road has been formally established as a 
public highway. The dedication shall vest all right, title, easement, and appurtenances in and to 
the road in: 
(a) The county, if it is a county road; 
(b) The municipality, if it is a municipal street or road; or 
(c)  The state, if it is a road in the State Highway System or State Park Road System, whether 
or not there is a record of a conveyance, dedication, or appropriation to the public use. 
(2) In those instances where a road has been constructed by a nongovernmental entity, or 
where the road was not constructed by the entity currently maintaining or repairing it, or where 
it cannot be determined who constructed the road, and when such road has been regularly 
maintained or repaired for the immediate past 7 years by a county, a municipality, or the 
Department of Transportation, whether jointly or severally, such road shall be deemed to be 
dedicated to the public to the extent of the width that actually has been maintained or repaired 
for the prescribed period, whether or not the road has been formally established as a public 
highway. This subsection shall not apply to an electric utility, as defined in s. 366.02(2). The 
dedication shall vest all rights, title, easement, and appurtenances in and to the road in: 
(a) The county, if it is a county road; 
(b) The municipality, if it is a municipal street or road; or 

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 136 of 144



(c)  The state, if it is a road in the State Highway System or State Park Road System, whether 
or not there is a record of conveyance, dedication, or appropriation to the public use. 
(3) The filing of a map in the office of the clerk of the circuit court of the county where the 
road is located showing the lands and reciting on it that the road has vested in the state, a 
county, or a municipality in accordance with subsection (1) or subsection (2) or by any other 
means of acquisition, duly certified by: 
(a) The secretary of the Department of Transportation, or the secretary’s designee, if the road 
is a road in the State Highway System or State Park Road System; 
(b) The chair and clerk of the board of county commissioners of the county, if the road is a 
county road; or 
(c)  The mayor and clerk of the municipality, if the road is a municipal road or street, shall be 
prima facie evidence of ownership of the land by the state, county, or municipality, as the case 
may be. 
(4) Any person, firm, corporation, or entity having or claiming any interest in and to any of 
the property affected by subsection (2) shall have and is hereby allowed a period of 1 year after 
the effective date of this subsection, or a period of 7 years after the initial date of regular 
maintenance or repair of the road, whichever period is greater, to file a claim in equity or with a 
court of law against the particular governing authority assuming jurisdiction over such property 
to cause a cessation of the maintenance and occupation of the property. Such timely filed and 
adjudicated claim shall prevent the dedication of the road to the public pursuant to subsection 
(2). 
(5)  This section does not apply to any facility of an electric utility which is located on 
property otherwise subject to this section. 
History.—s. 110, ch. 29965, 1955; ss. 23, 35, ch. 69-106; s. 23, ch. 74-382; s. 1, ch. 77-174; s. 
3, ch. 88-168; s. 529, ch. 95-147; s. 54, ch. 2003-286; s. 14, ch. 2004-366. 
Note.—Former s. 337.31. 

 

2.CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

Staff has worked with the Town’s Engineer to identify roads within close geographical
proximity of each other (identified in map of project).  Due to the quantity of intersects with
existing lettered and sometimes non-lettered roads, the work effort is much greater than that 
performed by the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District.   
 

 

3.ATTACHMENTS  
 

 
Proposal dated November 19, 2015 – Keshavarz & Associates 
Identified Town Roads for Project 
Identified Town Roads for Project Map 

 

4.FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 
Funding is available in the CIP Fund and this work will cost $97,585.40, leaving a balance of 
$2,414.60. 

  
5.RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

 
A motion to authorize the Town Manager to execute work authorization in an amount not to 
exceed $97,585.40.  

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 137 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 138 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 139 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 140 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 141 of 144



Town Road Mileage Chart

2015

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION

ROAD 

MILEAGE

LANE 

MILEAGE

11TH TERRACE BLOCK C 0.208

12TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.397

14TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.171

17TH ROAD NORTH BLOCK B 0.118

21ST ROAD NORTH BLOCK C 0.132

22ND COURT NORTH BLOCK F/FOLSOM 0.275

22ND ROAD NORTH ** BLOCK C (C ROAD) 0.221

22ND ROAD NORTH  BLOCK E (E ROAD) 0.138

22ND ROAD NORTH  BLOCK F (F ROAD) 0.194

23RD COURT NORTH BLOCK E 0.173

24TH CIRCLE NORTH BLOCK C 0.247

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK C (C ROAD) 0.255

24TH COURT NORTH ** BLOCK D (E ROAD) 0.194

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK E (WEST F) 0.224

24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK F (EAST F) 0.367

BUNNY LANE BLOCK C 0.183

(WILSON) CASEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.733

CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.238

EAST CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.495

EDITH ROAD BLOCK E 0.191

FARLEY ROAD BLOCK E 0.191

FLAMINGO DRIVE BLOCK C 0.135

FOREST LANE BLOCK B 0.209

FOX TRAIL BLOCK E 0.193

GRUBER LANE BLOCK C 0.497

HYDE PARK ROAD BLOCK E 0.447

KERRY LANE BLOCK E 0.257

LOS ANGELES DRIVE BLOCK B 0.214

LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.175

MORROW COURT BLOCK B 0.193

PARADISE TRAIL BLOCK C 0.150

RACKLEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.140

RAYMOND DRIVE ** BLOCK F 0.327

ROBERTS WAY BLOCK B 0.195

SAN DIEGO DRIVE BLOCK B 0.214

SCOTTS PLACE BLOCK B 0.205

TANGERINE DRIVE BLOCK K 0.514

TEMPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.082

TIMBERLANE PLACE BLOCK B 0.119

VALENCIA DRIVE BLOCK K 0.125

WILLIAMS DRIVE BLOCK B 0.211

9.947

 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 142 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 143 of 144



 
 

2015-12-01 TC Agenda Packet 144 of 144


	Agenda
	Miinutes - 11/02/2015
	Goren Cherof Doody & Ezrol Invoices
	Escrow Agreement - PBC Clerk fo the Court
	AIR - Drysdale Site Plan Application SP15-3
	Resolution No. 2015-36
	Agenda Staff Summary
	AIR - Weber Variance Application VA2015-01
	Resolution No. 2015-37
	Agenda Staff Summary
	Ordinance No. 2015-08
	Manager's Report
	PBC Fire/Rescue October 2015 Report
	PBSO October 2015 Report
	140th Avenue N/SunSport Cut-through Removal Report
	Report on  Addressing RV Uses
	Discussion on Substandard Housing
	Revised 2016 Legislative Agenda
	Approval of Specific Purpose Surveys for Acquisition of Town Road-Right-of-ways
	Untitled



